Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

8-27-2014

Flieger v. State Appellant's Brief 1 Dckt. 40690

U.S. v. Leon, 468 U.S. 897, 468 U.S. 906 (1984)	
I.S. v. Lefkowitz, 285 II.S. 452, 52 S.Ct. 420, 76 I.Ed. 877 (1932)	21 -

TABLE OF FEDERAL CASES AND AUTHORITIES
U.S. v. Lopez, 564 F.2d 710 (5th Cir. 1977)
Linkletter v. Walker, 381 U.S. 618, 381 U.S. 629 (1965)
Lockett v. Blackburn, 571 F.2d 309 (5th Cir. 1978)
Lay v. State, 110 Nev. 1189, 886 P.2d 448 (1994)
Lockhart v. Fretwell, 506 U.S. 364, 113 S.Ct. 838, 122 L.Ed.2d 180 (1993)
Meng v. N.Y., 423 U.S. 61, 96 S.Ct. 241, 46 L.Ed.2d 195 (S.Ct.1975)
Moore v. Arizona, 414 U.S. 25, 94 S.Ct. 188, 38 L.Ed.2d 183 (1973)/7
Murray v. U.S., 487 U.S. 533, 487 U.S. 536 (1988)
Muehler v. Mina, 544 U.S. 93, (2005)
U.S. v. Millio, 588 F.Supp. 45 (W.D.N.Y. 1984)
Mapp v. Ohio, 367 U.S. 643, 367 U.S. 655 (1961)
Morrissey v. Brewer, 408 U.S. 471 (1972)
Mempa v. Rhay, 389 U.S. 128 (1967)
Meachum v. Fano, 427 U.S. 215 (1976)
McKoy v. North Carolina, 494 U.S. 433, 110 S.Ct. 1227, 108 L.Ed.2d 369(1990) 28
McDaniel v. Brown, 129 S.Ct. 1038, 173 L.Ed.2d 468 (2009) 28
Virgin Islands v. Mills, 956 F.2d 443 (3d Cir. 1992) 26
U.S. v. Martin Linen Supply Co., 430 U.S. 564, 97 S.Ct. 1349, 51 L.Ed.2d 642 (1977)
New York v. Harris, 495 U.S. 14 (1990)
Nardone v. U.S., 308 U.S. 338, 308 U.S. 341 (1939) 20
U.S. v. Nava-Ramirez, 210 F.3d 1128 (10th Cir. 2000)22
Nelson v. Estelle, 642 F.2d 903 (5th Cir. 1981)
Neder v. U.S., 527 U.S. 1 (1999)
In re Oliver, 333 U.S. 257 (1948)39
U.S. v. Ogles, 440 F.3d 1095 (9th Cir. 2006)
Delaware v. Prouse, 440 U.S. 648, 99 S.Ct. 1391, 59 L.Ed.2d 660 (1979) 2012
U.S. v. Pacheco, 617 F.2d 84 (5th Cir. 1977)
Pollard v. U.S., 352 U.S. 354
Pettijohn v. Hall, 599 F.2d 476 (1st Cir. 1979)28
Powers v. White, 680 F.2d 51 (8th Cir. 1982)
Florida v. Royer, 460 U.S. 491, 103 S.Ct. 1319, 75 L.Ed.2d 229 (1983)— 20
Rios v. U.S., 364 U.S. 253, 80 S.Ct. 1431, 4 L.Ed.2d 1688 (1960) 2/
U.S. v. Robinson, 585 F.2d 274 (7th Cir. 1978)/1
Pennsylvania v. Ritchie, 480 U.S. 39, 56 n. 13, 94 L.Ed.2d 40,56. n. 13,

TABLE OF FEDERAL CASES AND AUTHORITIES

Pag
Arizona v. Rumsey, 467 U.S. 203, 211, 104 S.Ct. 2305, 81 L.Ed.2d 164 (1984)- 444
Rewis v. U.S., 401 U.S. 808, 28 L.Ed.2d 493, 91 S.Ct. 1056 (1971)
Robinson v. California, 370 U.S. [660], [82 S.Ct. 1417 at 1420, 8 L.Ed.2d 758] (1962)
Ring v. Arizona, 536 U.S. 584, 153 L.Ed.2d 556, 122 S.Ct. 2428 (2002)
Sindak v. Idaho, 493 U.S. 1076, 107 L.Ed.2d 1032, 110 S.Ct. 1125 (1990)
Strunk v. U.S., 412 U.S. 434, 93 S.Ct. 2260, 37 L.Ed.2d 56 (1973)/7
Smith v. Hooey, 393 U.S. 374, 89 S.Ct. 575, 21 L.Ed.2d 607 (1969)
Michigan v. Summers, 452 U.S. 692, 69 L.Ed.2d 340, 101 S.Ct. 2587
U.S. v. Sharpe, 470 U.S. 675, 105 S.Ct. 1568, 84 L.Ed.2d 605(1985)
Stone v. Powell, 428 U.S. 465, 96 S.Ct. 3037, 49 L.Ed.2d 1067 (1976)
Segura v. U.S., 468 U.S. 796, 104 S.Ct. 3380, 82 L.Ed.2d 599 (1984)
U.S. v. Scheffer, S.Ct
Smith v. Illinois, 390 U.S. 129, 88 S.Ct. 748, 19 L.Ed.2d 956 (1968)
Serra v. Michigan Dept. of Corrections, 4 F.3d 1348 (6th Cir. 1993)
Stano v. Dugger, 901 F.2d 898 (11th Cir. 1990)
Smalis v. Pennsylvania, 476 U.S. 140, 106 S.Ct. 1745, 90 L.Ed.2d 116 (1986)
Schiro v. Farley, 510 U.S. 222, 114 S.Ct. 783, 127 L.Ed.2d 47 (1994) 43
Smith v. Massachusetts, 543 U.S. 462, 125 S.Ct. 1129, 160 L.Ed.2d 914(05)-47
U.S. v. Scott, 437 U.S. 82, 98 S.Ct. 2187, 57 L.Ed.2d 65 (1978) 47,44
Sanabria v. U.S., 437 U.S. 54, 98 S.Ct. 2170, 57 L.Ed.2d 43 (1978)
Solem v. Helm, 463 U.S. 277, 103 S.Ct. 3001, 77 L.Ed.2d 637 (1983)
Sullivan v. Lousiana, 508 U.S. 275, 113 S.Ct. 2078, 124 L.Ed.2d 182(1993)
Taglavore v. U.S., 291 F.2d 262 (9th Cir. 1961)
In re Tony C., 21 Cal.3d 888, 148 Cal.Rptr. 366, 582 P.2d 957 (1978) 20.
Terry v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1, 88 S.Ct. 1868, 20 L.Ed.2d 889 (1968) 10,21,22'
Taylor v. Alabama, 457 U.S. 687, 457 U.S. 690 (1982)
Taylor v. Illinois, 484 U.S. 400, 108 S.Ct. 646, 98 L.Ed.2d 798 (1988) 28
Teague v. Lane, 489 U.S. 288, (1989)
Ex parte Virginia, 100 U.S. 339 (1880)2/
U.S. v. Valdez, 267 F.3d 395 (5th Cir. 2001)
Harig v. Wolff 414 F.Supp. 290 (DC Neb. 1976)
Wong Sun v. U.S. 371 U.S. 471, 83 S.Ct. 407, 9 L.Ed.2d 441 (1963) 10
Worthington v. U.S., 166 F.2d 557 (6th Cir. 1948)
Weeks v. U.S., 232 U.S. 383, 232 U.S. 391 (1914)

TABLE OF FEDERAL CASES AND AUTHORITIES Page No. Wolfff v. McDonnell, 418 U.S. 539 (1974) -----In re Winship, 397 U.S. 358, 25 L.Ed.2d 368, 90 S.Ct. 1068 (1970) --- 25,47 Williams v. Woodford, 306 F.3d 665 (9th Cir. 2002) -----U.S. v. Wilson, 262 F.3d 305 (4th Cir. 2001) -----Washington v. Texas, 388 U.S. 14, 87 S.Ct. 1920, 18 L.Ed.2d 1019(1967)- 39,40Walker v. Engle, 703 F.2d 959, 12 Fed.R.Evid.Serv. 1819(6th Cir. 1983) U.S. v. Zavala-Serra, 853 F.2d 1512 (9th Cir. 1988) ------UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION U.S.C.A. CONST. AMEND. I. -----U.S.C.A. CONST. AMEND. IV. -----U.S.C.A. CONST. AMEND. V. U.S.C.A. CONST. AMEND. VI. ----U.S.C.A. CONST. AMEND. VII. -----U.S.C.A. CONST. AMEND. IIX. ----U.S.C.A. CONST. AMEND. XIV, § I. -----OTHER CONSTITUTIONS THE MARYLAND DECLARATION OF RIGHTS, Article XXIII (1776) -----NORTH CAROLINA DECLARATION OF RIGHTS, Article XI (1776) -PENNSYLVANIA CONSTITUTION, Artilce X (1776) -----MASSACHUSETTS CONSTITUTION, Part I, Article XIV (1780) -MAGNA CARTA, Chapter 29 -----FEDERAL STATUTES TITLE 18 U.S.C.A. § 3052 -----TITLE 18 U.S.C.A. § 1512(b) TITLE 28 § 2241 to 2254-55 185 A.L.R. Fed. 1 -----106 A.L.R. 508 33 A.L.R.3d 335 (1970 & Supp.1990) -----Fed.Crim.R. 23(A) -----

ADDITIONAL AUTHORITY STATE Page No. Murray v. State, 121 idaho 918, 828 P.2d 1323 (Ct.App.1992) ----Hassett v. state, 127 Idaho 313, 900 P.2d 221 (Ct.App.1995) -----State v. Hairston, 133 Idaho 496, 988 P.2d 1170 (1999) Parrott v. state, 117 Idaho 272, 787 P.2d 258 (1990) Whitehawk v. State, 116 Idaho 831, 780 P.2d 153 (Ct.App.1989) -----ADDITIONAL AUTHORITY FEDERAL Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984)-- l (inner citations ommitted) United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 104 S.Ct. 2039, 80 L.Ed.2d 657 (1984)---! (inner citations ommitted) Yick Wo v. Hopkins, 118 U.S. 356 (1886) U.S. v. Robinson, 913 F.2d 712 (9thCir.1990) -----Bowman v. Niagara Mach. & Tool Work's, Inc. 832 F.2d 1052 ----/2 Gassler v. Rayl, 862 F.2d 706 _____/2 Crowder v. Sinyard, 884 F.2d 804 Soranno's Gasco, Inc. v. Morgan, 874 F.2d 1310 -----Ake v. Oklahoma, 470 U.S. 68, 105 S.Ct. 1087 (1985) -----Bell v. Wolfish, 441 U.S. 520, 99 S.Ct. 1861 (1979) Gideon v. Wainwright, 373 U.S. 335, 83 S.Ct. 792, 9 L.Ed.2d 799 (1963 ----Powell v. Alabama, 287 U.S. 45, 53 S.Ct. 55, 77 L.Ed. 158 (1932) -----U.S. v. Ash, 413 U.S. 300, 93 S.Ct. 2568, 37 L.Ed.2d 619 (1973) -----Argersinger v. Hamlin, 407 U.S. 25, 92 S.Ct. 2006, 32 L.Ed.2d 530 (1972) ---Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U.S. 458, 58 S.Ct. 1019, 82 L.Ed. 1461 (1938) -Avery v. Alabama, 308 U.S. 444, 60 S.Ct. 321, 84 L.Ed. 377 (1940) Stone v. powell, 428 U.S. 465, 96 S.Ct. 3037, 49 L.Ed.2d 1007 (1976) -----Stone v. Dugger, 901 F.2d 898 (11thCir.1990) -----Wabasha v. Solem, 694 F.2d 155, (8thCir.1982)

U.S. v. Kohring, 637 F.3d 895 (9thCir. 2011)

ADDITIONAL AUTHORITY FEDERAL

Brady, v. U.S., 397 U.S. 742, (1970)	3/
Giglio v. U.S., 405 U.S. 154, 92 S.Ct. 763	-31,32
U.S. v. Williams, 547 F.3d 1887, (9thCir.2008)	3/
Strickler v. Greene, 527 U.S. 263, 119 S.Ct. 1936, 144 L.Ed.2d 286 (1999) -	
U.S. v. Bagley, 473 U.S. 667, 105 S.Ct. 3375, 87 L.Ed.2d 481 (1985)	31,32
Kyles v. Whitley, 514 U.S. 419, 115 S.Ct. 1555, 131 L.Ed.2d 490 (1995)	
jackson, 513 F.3d at 1071	
Morris v. Ylst, 447 F.3d 735 (9thCir.2006)	3/ L
In Re Brown, 17 Cal.4th 873 (1998)	_32
Agurs, 427 U.S., , 96 S.Ct. 2401	32
Silva v. Brown, 416 F.3d 980 (9thCir, 2005)	33
State v. Dearman, 422 P.2d 573 (Kan.1967)	- 36
ADDITIONAL AUTHORITY STATE	
State v. Faudebaugh, 124 Idaho 758, 864 P.2d 596 (1993)	
State v. Boehner, 114 Idaho 311 (Ct.App.1988)	35
State v. Paciorek, 137 Idaho 629 (Ct.App.2002)	35
State v. Lovelass, 133 Idaho 160 (Ct.App.1999)	35
State v. Martinez, 125 Idaho 445 (1994)	35
State v. Ellington, 151 Idaho 53 (2011)	36
State v. Perry, 150 Idaho 209 (idaho 2010)	36
State v. Sheldon, 145 Idaho 225, 178 P.3d 28 (2008)	- 37
State v. Rozajewski, 130 Idaho 644, 945 P.2d 1390 (Ct.App.1997)	
State v. Rossignol, 147 Idaho 818, 215 P.3d 538 (Id.App)	
Murray v. State, 121 Idaho ,	10

TABLE OF LEGAL PUBLICATION AUTHORITIES

Page N
The Right To A Speedy Criminal Trial, 57 Colum. L.Rev. 846-855 (1957)
J. Maguire, Evidence Of Guilt, 221 (1959)
Wayne R. LaFave, Search And Seizure § 3.1(b) (3d Ed. 1996)
House Of Commons, 16 Hansard, Parl. Hist. Eng. 207 (1766)
James Otis, (Quincy's Miss. Rep., Appendix, p. 469, (1761-1772)
Hogan And Snee, The McNabb-Mallory Rule: Its Rise, Rational And Rescue, 47 Geo. L. J. 1, 22
Sir Edward Coke, Magna Carta, 2 Institutes 55 (Brooke, 5th Ed., 1797)
Black's Law Dictionary, 577 (7th Ed. 1999)
Clinton, The Right To Present A Defense: An Emergent Constitutional Guarantee, In Criminal Trials, 9 Ind. L. Rev. 711-858 (1976)
Westen, The Compulsory Process Clause, 73 Mich. L. Rev. 71,96 (1974) 26,28
Amar, Foreword: Sixth Amendment First Principles, 84 Geo.L.J. 641- (1996) 18
Comment, Federal Habeas Corpus: The Relevance Of Petitioner's Innocence, 46 UMKC L. Rev. 382 (1978)
Churchwell, The Constitutional Right To Present Evidence: Progeny Of, Chambers v. Mississippi, 19 Crim.L.Bull. 131, 148 (1983)
Accused's Right, Under Federal Constitution's Sixth Amendment, To Compulsory, Process For obtaining Witnesses In Accused's Favor, Supreme Court Cases, 98 L.Ed.2d 1074 (1990)
Lewis, The Accused's Constitutional Right To Defend, 12 The Advocate at 299, (1980)(focusing on Washington v. Texas, 388 U.S. 14, 87 S.Ct. 1920, 18 L.Ed.2d 1019 (1967)
Peller, In Defense Of Federal Habeas Corpus Relitigation, 16 Harv.Civ.Rts Civ.Lib.L.Rev. 579 (1982)
R. Traynor, The Riddle Of Harmless Error 50 (1970)
ABA Standards Relating To Appellate Review Of Sentences (Approved Draft 1968)-
Comment Note Length Of Sentence As Violation Of Constitutional Provisions, Prohibiting Cruel And Unusual Punishment, 33 A.L.R.3d 335,359-63, (1970 & Supp. 1990); U.S. v. Zavala-Serra, 853 F.2d 1512 (9thCir.1988
The Federalist No. 83, p. 499 (C. Rossiter Ed. 1961)(A. hamilton)
Hoeffel, The Sixth Amendment's Lost Clause: unearthing Compulsory Process, 2002 Wis.L.Rev. 1275 n. 111
Actual Innocence - Teague Doctrine

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

NATURE OF THE CASE

Phillip Duane Flieger appeals from the Order Dismissing Petition For Post Conviction Relief, Granting the State's Motion For Summary Dismissal, entered January 14, 2013. Appellant was originally found guilty after a jury trial of Three (3) counts of Possession of a controlled substance and sentenced to three Ten (10) Year to Life sentences, concurrent. Appellant appealed his conviction and sentence prior to the filing of his post-convictin. The Appellant raised numerous issues of constitutional error all premised on and due to, Ineffective Assistance of Counsel, prior to trial, during trial, and on appeal. Those issues are on appeal now here, along with the court's error and abuse of discretion in dismissing the petition.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS AND COURSE OF THE PROCEEDINGS

For the Record, the Petitioner-Appellant disputes the factual findings and assertions of the State, the court, and those made by all appointed counsel, including appellate counsel. (Appellant has never been found guilty of intent to deliver, and never consented to any searches, and never waived any rights, including right to speedy trial.) any comments made by any party to the contrary are false and prejudicial. Furthermore, Appellant makes a federal claim, giving notice of same in his pleadings at every instance. Appellant also makes an actual innocence claim, asking for a full and fair review of the facts and documents submitted for review by Appellant to support that claim.

The Appellant gives a full and complete account of the facts in his 'Affidavit In Support of Petition For Post-Conviction Relief (See: Clerks Record Docket #40690 page 18 to page 71, Idaho Supreme Court). These facts are attached to this Brief as Exhibit #A, and are meant to support the claims and issues in the brief and are referred to in full as if fully contained herein (attached).

The Petitioner-Appellant's issues were all raised pursuant to an ineffective assistance of counsel claim, during the course of these proceedings the petitioner filed an Exhibit which was a pro-se appeal brief (See: Exhibit #68) which he had filed in his direct appeal when appeallate counsel, Justin Curtis refused to raise those issues mandated by Idaho Law be raised on direct appeal or be forfeit. Due to this madate, the appellant at the time, repeatedly asked counsel to raise the issues on direct appeal, when counsel refused to, and also committed other fatal errors in the appeal, such as telling the Supreme Court he was found guilty of intent to deliver when it was only possession, appellant had no choice but to file to preserve his right to appeal. The pro-se brief was rejected by the Clerk of the

Court due to appellant haveing counsel. This same brief was submitted as argument) exhibit and evidence (not as in the present case with Petitioner-Appellant's Post-Conviction. The brief was submitted as proof appellate counsel's failure to raise the issues on direct appeal, and therefore supportive of Petitioner's ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel's claims. The district court denied petitioner's augmentation and exhibit. When Appellant tried to submit the brief and get it augmented to the Idaho Supreme Court, it was denied again, even though it is part of the clerks record (page #460-601). This is an impermissible impediment by the state to deny a full and fair adjudication of Petitioner-Appellant's claims, concerning assistance of counsel.

Also suppressed by the government in this case is evidence supporting Petitioner-Appellant'sa actual innocence, (Affidavit's of Robert Berry)(Exhibit #1 and Exhibit #2, which is Berry's written confession and sworn testimony). This is the evidence that was withheld from the jury at trial. (see RC-18 to 71).

Petitioner-Appellant's version of the facts, which are supported by evidence submitted to the trial court but withheld from the jury are:

Mr. Flieger loaned his truck to an individual named Robert Berry, whom than used it with another man Berry described as Juan. Berry than, along with juan used drugs at verious locations and while using the truck. They than left the drugs in the truck in a bag they seen on the floorboard that was already there. when Mr. Flieger reobtained the vehicle he was pulled over that same day under suspicious circumstances (Appellant alleges stalking). Upon an illegal search narcotics were found and evidence was tainted and later destroyed. Mr. Flieger was charged and held for trial. When Flieger asked that fingerprints be taken and denied the drugs were his, the items with fingerprints were destroyed. When Mr. Flieger tried to submit testimony from the owners of the narcotics, it was suppressed. When Mr. Flieger refused to waive his speedy trial rights, due to the need to have the witnesses available and testify, his rights were waived in secret, without his consent. In the interval while awaiting a new trial date, the county sheriff transfer one of Appellant's witnesses out of the country. (Juan). When the only and true remaining accomplice attempted to submit an Affidavit (Sworn) to his exact involvement in the crime, not only was it withheld from the jury by the trial court, but the court even threatened the deputy sheriff, Stacy Thomas , for notarizing the affidavit. When the same witness, Robert Berry, attempted to testify at trial, after lawful notice and listing, the trial court stopped the trial, deposed Berry outside the hearing of the jury, threatened him, and when he

was leaving the courtroom after testifying at deposition, the state threatened Berry outside the door of the courtroom with prosecution if he continued to testify. These incident's were witnessed by counsel, objected to, put on record, and at all times properly and fairly presented to the court. After being threatened, Berry took the plead the fifth amendment in front of the jury, his affidavit was withheld, his testimony picked apart and partially read to the jury, and the jury was informed by the state and the court not to believe his testimony which proved the innocence of the Petitioner-Appellant. These errors prejudiced the Appellant, violate his right to a fair trial, and denied the jury the right to determine the truth.

When the jury ignored the charge of Intent to Deliver, and found the 'defendant' guilty only of possession on all three counts, both the state and the court ignored this verdict at sentencing, reaccused Flieger of Intent to Deliver, and sentenced him accordingly, committing double jeopardy, and violating Appellant's substantive rights to due process of law.

The Appellant provides the Court with specific recitation and references to the record in his Exhibit's; and below, but more concisely in the Affidavit In Support (RC-18 thru 71)(Exhibit A). Along with this initial Brief on Appeal, Appellant provides the Court with a complete Exhibit file submitted in his post-conviction petition (Attached).

The district court denied augmentation and judicial notice in part, but this is in error. As the preliminary argument shows (below) it is mandated that petitioner's submit affidavits; evidence; exhibits; and supporting documents with their petitions.

Appellant was denied an evidentiary hearing, only a summary judgment proceeding, where his witnesses were not allowed, and evidence was not permitted. The state of course presented evidence, disputing petitioner's claims, but the record provided to this Court clearly shows that the district court made an unreasonable determination of the facts, and rullings contrary to United States Supreme Court precedent, as well as contradicting Idaho's own mandates. See below.

The Appellant points out that state created impediments of the evidence and facts that support Appellant's claims, is unconstitutional, reviewable, and in all instances, an exhaustion of the claims pursuant to the AEDPA and PLRA. Appellant is only required to 'give the state an opportunity' he can not force them to take that opportunity. Herein and below is their opportunity.

PRELIMINARY ARGUMENT

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