# Uldaho Law **Digital Commons** @ **Uldaho Law**

Not Reported

Idaho Supreme Court Records & Briefs

12-10-2014

## Flieger v. State Respondent's Brief Dckt. 40690

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

Finally, Flieger cannot show that his trial counsel's failure to challenge the district court's sentencing determination on double jeopardy grounds constitutes deficient performance. As discussed in greater detail below, a district court's consideration of, or reference to, a defendant's conduct other than that for which he was convicted does not constitute punishment *for* that other conduct, and does not result in a double jeopardy violation. Flieger can therefore not show either deficiency or prejudice with regard to this claim.

### 5. Ineffective Assistance Of Appellate Counsel Curtis

Flieger asserts that Justin Curtis, his appellate counsel, was ineffective for: failing to raise certain issues on appeal, including the district court's denial of his motion to suppress and motion to dismiss the case on speedy trial grounds; failing to communicate with him; failing to correct errors in his Appellant's brief; and failing to supplement the argument on appeal. (See generally R., pp.1265-1279.)

The two-prong <u>Strickland</u> test for ineffective assistance of counsel discussed above applies to claims of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel.

Baxter v. State, 149 Idaho 859, 243 P.3d 675 (Ct. App. 2010) (citing Mintun v. State, 144 Idaho 656, 661, 168 P.3d 40, 45 (Ct. App. 2007)). In order to establish ineffective assistance of appellate counsel, a petitioner has the burden of proving that his counsel's representation on appeal was deficient and that the deficiency was prejudicial. Evitts v. Lucey, 469 U.S. 387 (1985); Mitchell v. State, 132 Idaho 274, 276, 971 P.2d 727, 730 (1998). Even if a defendant requests that certain issues be raised on appeal, appellate counsel has no constitutional obligation to raise every non-frivolous issue requested by the defendant. Jones v. Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751-53 (1983); Aragon v. State, 114 Idaho 758, 765, 760 P.2d 1174, 1181 (1988) (citing Jones, 463 U.S. at 751-754). The relevant inquiry is whether there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's errors, the defendant would have prevailed on appeal. Smith v. Robbins, 528 U.S. 259, 285 (2000); Schoger v. State, 148 Idaho 622, 629, 226 P.3d 1269, 1276 (2010) (citing State v. Payne, 146 Idaho 548, 561, 199 P.3d 123, 136 (2008)).

A review of the record reveals that appellate counsel's decisions regarding which issues to raise on direct appeal were tactical and based upon a reasonable analysis of the merits of potential issues, and not upon ignorance of the law or some other deficiency. (See R., pp.613-615 (letter from Curtis to Flieger explaining why he declined to pursue certain claims proposed by Flieger).)

Further, a review of the Appellant's brief demonstrates that Curtis competently raised several issues and sub-issues (R., pp.429-456), each of which, the state submits, were more potentially meritorious than the claims

Flieger sought to raise on direct appeal, and subsequently attempted to raise for the first time in his post-conviction petition (See Sec. D, below).

Further, Flieger has failed to demonstrate that any of the claims he feels his appellate counsel should have raised had a reasonable probability of actually succeeding. To the contrary, as discussed below, several of these proposed claims clearly lack merit.

Finally, Flieger's claims that his appellate counsel failed to communicate with him, and failed to correct errors in the appellate briefing are both disproven by the record. Letters between Flieger and Curtis, and Flieger and another SAPD attorney, demonstrate Curtis' attempts not only to keep Flieger informed, but also to explain, in detail, his decision not to raise certain issues on appeal. (R., pp.605-606, 612-615, 618-619, 1247-1249; see also pp.647-650 (Idaho State Bar counsel discussing her finding that there was no clear or convincing evidence that Flieger's bar complaint against Curtis fell within the purview of the Idaho Rules of Professional Conduct)). The record also reflects that Curtis did send a letter to the Idaho Court of Appeals to correct a clerical error regarding the charges Flieger was ultimately convicted of. (R., p.1250.)

Flieger has failed to demonstrate facts, which, if true, entitle him to relief as to any of his ineffective assistance of counsel claims. This Court should therefore affirm the district court's order summarily dismissing his petition.

### D. <u>Flieger Has Failed To Show He Is Entitled To Relief As To Any Of His Non-Ineffective Assistance Of Counsel Claims</u>

On appeal, Flieger states that each of the claims he raised in his post-conviction petition pertained to ineffective assistance of counsel. (Appellant's brief, p.1.) Further, each of the issue headings in the Appellant's brief reference ineffective assistance of counsel. (Appellant's brief, pp.9-41.) However, in the argument section of his brief, and in his brief in support of his petition for post-conviction relief submitted below, Flieger clearly alleges violations of other constitutional rights. (See Appellant's brief; R., pp.72-159.) The state responded to these claims in its motion for summary dismissal. (R., pp.1251-1280.)

Again, because the district court adopted the state's motion for summary dismissal in dismissing Flieger's post-conviction petition, the state relies on this same motion to construe Flieger's claims. Below, the state construed Flieger as asserting the following non-ineffective assistance of counsel claims: (1) various sub-claims relating to his motion to suppress; (2) prosecutorial misconduct; (3) speedy trial right violation; (4) judicial misconduct in questioning witness Berry; (5) violation of his double jeopardy rights at sentencing; and (6) abuse of sentencing discretion. (Id.)

Flieger has failed to show error in the district court's summary dismissal as to any of these claims. At the outset, Flieger waived each of these claims by failing to raise them previously. Post-conviction relief proceedings are not a substitute for proceedings in the trial court, or for an appeal from the sentence or conviction. Nellsch v. State, 122 Idaho 426, 430, 835 P.2d 661, 665 (Ct. App. 1992) (citing I.C. § 19-4901(b)). Aside from his claim of ineffective assistance of

appellate counsel, Flieger has made no attempt to argue why any of these non-ineffective assistance of counsel claims could not have been raised previously. Additionally, many of these claims are disproven by the record or clearly fail as a matter of law.

### 1. <u>Claims Relating To The Motion To Suppress</u>

With regard to his motion to suppress, Flieger asserts: the state submitted false affidavits, the state withheld exculpatory evidence, and the court erred in denying his motion to suppress. (See R., pp.1262-1263.) In addition to being waived, these claims are conclusory and unsupported by admissible evidence.

As discussed above, Flieger has failed to present any admissible evidence demonstrating his allegations that the state submitted false affidavits or engaged in any other type of misconduct with respect to the motion to suppress. The district court's conclusions in denying Flieger's motions were based upon credibility determinations made in favor of the testifying officer, and factual findings based on audio recordings of the stop. (R., pp.1109-1114.) Flieger has not attempted to show that the determinations were clearly erroneous. He can therefore not show that the district court erred in denying his motion to suppress.

#### 2. Prosecutorial Misconduct

Flieger asserts that the prosecutor committed misconduct by: filing probation violations, intimidating witnesses, refusing to provide exculpatory evidence, intentionally delaying the trial, making false statements, withholding evidence from the state lab, deporting a witness, and referencing his post-

Miranda silence during the trial. (See R., pp.1262, 1269-1270, 1274-1275.) Flieger has failed to present admissible evidence supporting any of these claims.

As discussed above, the Idaho Court of Appeals has already addressed the state's trial reference to his post-*Miranda* silence, and held that while these references were inappropriate, they were harmless. <u>Flieger</u>, 2011 Unpublished Opinion No. 514, p.5. The doctrine of *res judicata* precludes any re-litigation of this claim. <u>See Schultz v. State</u>, 153 Idaho 791, 797-798, 291 P.3d 474, 480-481 (2012) ("In post-conviction proceedings, Idaho appellate courts have applied the related principles of res judicata to bar an attempt to raise, in an application for post-conviction relief, the same issue previously decided in a direct appeal.").

Finally, Flieger's apparent allegations regarding lab misconduct at the Idaho State lab in Pocatello are also disproven by the record. The Idaho State Police disclosed that four lab analysts violated internal policies in the course of their employment at the Pocatello lab. (R., pp.379-409, 761-763.) The violations concerned the handling of controlled substances unrelated to any testing of drugs in any criminal case, and the incidents did not ultimately impact the lab's accreditation. (Id.) The drugs associated with Flieger's convictions were tested in the Meridian lab, not the Pocatello lab. (R., pp.683, 729-731.) None of the disclosed misconduct regarding the Pocatello lab implicated the Meridian lab, or occurred at the Meridian lab. (R., p.762.) Therefore, even if this claim had not been waived, Flieger has failed to allege facts demonstrating he is entitled to relief.

any admissible evidence establishing "Booger's" identity, or demonstrating what exactly he would have testified to. Further, the postponement of Flieger's trial was based entirely upon Flieger's own failure to communicate with his defense attorney or probation officer by the eve of trial following the issuance of a warrant for his arrest. (See R., pp.303-304; 363-366.)

### 4. "Judicial Misconduct" In Questioning Witness

Flieger asserts that the district court committed "misconduct" by improperly questioning defense witness Jason Berry. (See R., pp.1270-1272.) Even if this claim were not waived, Flieger has failed to demonstrate facts, which, if true, demonstrate he is entitled to relief.

During the trial, Flieger attempted to introduce hearsay testimony from Berry regarding statements allegedly made by "Booger"/"Juan," the individual whom Flieger alleges left the drugs found in his vehicle. (R., pp.906-910.) Berry testified outside the presence of the jury. (R., pp.910-930.) Prior to this testimony, the district court advised Berry of his Fifth Amendment rights against self-incrimination. (R., p.910.) The court also asked Berry whether he felt any pressure or compulsion from anyone to either waive or assert his rights, whether he had adequate time to discuss the matter with his attorney, and other routine questions. (R., pp.910, 947.) Berry invoked his Fifth Amendment right against self-incrimination numerous times over the course of his testimony, and eventually made a blanket invocation cutting off all further questioning. (R., pp.910-930, 947.) Following Berry's testimony, the district court excluded Berry's

statements that constituted inadmissible hearsay (R., pp.944-945), but permitted Flieger to read a redacted version of the testimony to the jury. (R., pp.952-964).

Even if this claim had not been waived, Flieger has failed to demonstrate "judicial misconduct." A district court has the authority to ask questions of witnesses. I.R.E. 614(b). The court's inquiries regarding Flieger's Fifth Amendment rights were also entirely proper. In fact, when a witness invokes the Fifth Amendment in response to a question, the trial court *must* determine whether the refusal to answer is in fact justifiable under the privilege, and whether it is supported by more than a vague, subjective fear of prosecution. E.g. Whiteley v. State, 131 Idaho 323, 955 P.2d 1102 (1998). Flieger's apparent frustration that Berry was not willing to answer all of the questions posed to him does not render the court's Fifth Amendment advisement inappropriate. For these reasons, Flieger has failed to demonstrate he is entitled to relief on this claim.

### 5. <u>Double Jeopardy Violation At Sentencing</u>

Flieger asserts that the district court violated his double jeopardy rights by considering conduct other than that for which he was convicted in making its sentencing determination. (See R., pp.1272-1273.) Flieger's claim is conclusory, waived, and in any event, fails as a matter of law. A trial judge may consider a myriad of factors in imposing a sentence. See State v. Wickel, 126 Idaho 578, 580, 887 P.2d 1085, 1087 (Ct. App. 1994); I.C.R. 32. This broad spectrum includes a defendant's past criminal history and, with due caution, "the existence of [a] defendant's alleged criminal activity for which no charges have been filed,

or where charges have been dismissed." Wickel, 126 Idaho at 581, 887 P.2d at 1088, (citing State v. Barnes, 121 Idaho 409, 825 P.2d 506 (Ct. App. 1992)); see also State v. Stewart, 122 Idaho 284, 286, 833 P.2d 917, 919 (Ct. App. 1992). The district court did not violate Flieger's double jeopardy rights by considering Flieger's other conduct in making its sentencing determination.

### 6. <u>Cruel And Unusual Punishment/Abuse Of Sentencing Discretion</u>

Finally, Flieger asserts that his three concurrent unified life sentences with 10 years fixed for possession of methamphetamine constituted cruel and unusual punishment in violation of his constitutional rights, and an abuse of the district court's sentencing discretion. (See R., pp.1272-1273.) Flieger has failed to demonstrate he is entitled to relief.

Post-conviction relief proceedings are not the proper avenue for challenging a district court's exercise of sentencing discretion. Ramirez v. State, 113 Idaho 87, 741 P.3d 374 (Ct. App. 1987). In any event, the district court's sentence in this case was clearly reasonable in light of Flieger's extensive criminal history and previous failed opportunities on community supervision. (See R., pp.1230-1233 (the district court discussing the rationale behind its sentencing determination at the sentencing hearing).)

Each of Flieger's non-ineffective assistance counsel claims are waived because they were not previously raised. In any event, Flieger failed to assert facts, which, if true, demonstrated he was entitled to relief as to any of these claims. This Court should therefore affirm the district court's summarily dismissal of Flieger's post-conviction petition.

#### CONCLUSION

The state respectfully requests that this Court affirm the district court's order summarily dismissing Flieger's petition for post-conviction relief.